
(next page)→ 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors Meeting 

Thursday, January 16, 2025 – 6 pm 
General District Courtroom – Sussex Judicial Center 

15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex VA 23884 
 

==================================================================== 
 

1. Commencement 

1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum 

a. Approval of Board Member(s) Participating by Phone under Board Remote 

Participation Policy 

1.02 The Invocation 

1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance 

1.04 BOS Organizational Meeting for Calendar Year 2025 

 a. Election of Chairman for Calendar Year 2025 

  (Chairman will turn the meeting over to the County Administrator who will conduct 

this election.  Upon completion, the County Administrator will turn the meeting over 

to the 2025 Chairman.) 

 b. Election of Vice Chairman for Calendar Year 2025 

 c. Establishment of dates, times and place of regular meetings 

 d. Adoption of Rules and Procedures 

1.05 Agenda Amendment(s) 

1.06 Approval of Regular Agenda 

 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 

2.01 Approval of Minutes:  December 5 and 6 Board Retreat, December 12 Finance 

Committee and December 19, 2024 Regular Board of Supervisors Regular Meetings 

2.02 Warrants and Vouchers 

2.03 Treasurer’s Report & Financial Update – for information only  

2.04 Departmental Reports – for information only 

  

3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation  

3.01 Recognition of Deputy Clerk of Court Carolyn Matthews for 50 Consecutive Years of 

Service to Sussex County 

3.02 FY24 Audit – Taylor Stover, Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates 
 

4. Public Hearing  
4.01 Conditional Use Permit #2024-05 for Shooting Range, Henry Hayes, Applicant 

a. Enter Public Hearing 

1. Public Comments  

2. Board Comments 

b. Return to Open Session 

c. Action on Public Hearing Item, if any 

4.02 School System FY24 Budget Carryover Request/Budget Amendment  

a. Enter Public Hearing 

1. Public Comments  

2. Board Comments 

b. Return to Open Session 

c. Action on Public Hearing Item, if any 



  

5. Appointments  
5.01 Appointments to Sussex County Planning Commission 

5.02 Appointment to Crater District Area Agency on Aging 

5.03 Appointment to Board of Zoning Appeal 

  

6. Action Items 
6.01 Revised Historic Courthouse/Administrative Space Proposal—Andrew Moore, Glave & 

Holmes  

6.02 School System Reimbursable Spending Cap Increase Request 

 

7. Citizens’ Comments  
 

8. Unfinished Business  
8.01 Review and Revise the Short and Long-Term EMS Plan 

     

9. New Business – none  

 

10. Board Members Comments 

10.01 Blackwater District 

10.02 Courthouse District 

10.03 Henry District 

10.04 Stony Creek District 

10.05 Wakefield District 

10.06 Waverly District 

10.07 Yale District 

 

11. Closed Session  
11.01 Convene into Closed Session 

a.  Discussion, consideration, or interviews of prospective candidates for employment; 

assignment, appointment, promotion, performance, demotion, salaries, disciplining, or 

resignation of specific public officers, appointees, or employees of any public body; 

pursuant to applicable Va. Code Section 2.2.3711(A)1 

b. Discussion or consideration of the acquisition of real property for a public purpose, or 

of the disposition of publicly held real property, where discussion in an open meeting 

would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the public 

body; applicable Code Section 2.2-3711(A)3 

c. Consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by a public body regarding 

specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel; pursuant 

to applicable Va. Code Section 2.2.3711(A)8 

11.02 Reconvene to Open Session 

11.03 Certification 

11.04 Action(s) Resulting from Closed Session 

 
12. Recess/Adjournment  
12.01 Recess/Adjournment 

12.02 Next Meeting, TBD 

 



  

 

1 | Page – Minutes of December 19, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

At a Regular Meeting of the  

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Held in the General District Courtroom on 

Thursday, December 19, 2024 at 6 pm 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Wayne O. Jones, Chairman  

Steve E. White, Vice Chairman 

Thomas W. Baicy, III 

C. Eric Fly, Sr.   

Alfred G. Futrell 

Phyllis T. Tolliver 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

 

STAFF PRESENT: 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

David J. Conmy, Deputy County Administrator/ 

      Director of Economic Development 

Danielle Powell, County Attorney 

Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue 

Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 

Jeffrey Gary, Public Works Director 

Ernest Giles, Sheriff 

Almetia Hardman, Deputy Commonwealth’s Attorney (Virtual) 

Michael Kessinger, Captain 

Kelly W. Moore, Finance Director (Virtual) 

Titiana D. Nicholson, CSA Coordinator (Virtual) 

Nick Sheffield, Fire & Rescue Chief 

Regina Sykes, Commonwealth’s Attorney 

Matt Westheimer, Building Official 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

     Deputy Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

1.  Commencement  
 

1.01  Call to Order/Determine Quorum  

 

Chairman Jones called the December 19, 2024 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of 

Supervisors to order. 

 

1.02  The Invocation 

 

Supervisor Tyler offered the Invocation. 

 

1.03  The Pledge of Allegiance 



  

 

2 | Page – Minutes of December 19, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all.  

 

1.04  Agenda Amendments 

 

Supervisor Futrell requested to add a under Item 11. Closed Session, a Closed Item regarding 

Personnel. 

 

Administrator Douglas requested to table under Item 3. Recognition/Awards/Presentation, items 

3.03 FY2024 Audit and 3.04 Health Insurance/Health Reimbursement Account Update.  

 

Chairman Jones requested to add under Item 3. Recognition/Awards/Presentation as the new Item 

3.03 Eastern Seniors Sussex. 

 

1.05  Approval of Regular Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FUTRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approve the December 19,  2024 

agenda with the amendments as noted.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER, seconded by SUPERVISOR WHITE and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Consent agenda 

inclusive of the following: (a) October 24, Joint Public Hearing of the Sussex County Board of 

Supervisors and the Planning Commission and November 21, 2024 Regular Meeting minutes; (b) 

the Approval of Warrants and Vouchers; (c) Treasurer’s Report & Financial Update; (d) 

Departmental Reports; (e) Health Insurance/HRA Budget Amendment; and (f) Budget 

Appropriation for E-Summons Revenue in accordance with County Ordinance #22-01; and (g) 

First Responders Budget Amendment.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

Vice Chairman White entered at 6:08 p.m. 

 

Supervisor Fly entered at 6:10 p.m. 

 

3.  Recognitions/Awards/Presentation 

 

3.01   Recognition of David Conmy, Deputy County Administrator – 2024 Cohort of the 

Virginia Rural Leadership Institute 

Administrator Douglas recognized David Conmy, Deputy County Administrator, for his recent 

graduation from the 2024 Cohort of the Virginia Leadership Institute.   

 

Deputy County Administrator Conmy provided a brief summary to the Board. 

A copy of the 2024 Cohort of the Virginia Leadership Institute Certificate was included in the 

Board packet. 



  

 

3 | Page – Minutes of December 19, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

3.02    Gun Lock Giveaway Event 

 

Commonwealth’s Attorney Regina Sykes shared information on the upcoming gun lock giveaway 

event that was scheduled for the following Friday, December 20, 2024 in Sussex’s Juvenile & 

Domestic Courtroom.  She stated that there would be trigger locks and handgun safes given away.  

You had to be a Sussex resident to receive this giveaway.  Driver’s license had to be shown.   

 

She also discussed safety of guns in homes and hoped this would help the residents. 

 

Commonwealth’s Attorney Sykes also noted this thoughtful giveaway event was courtesy 

Operation Ceasefire.    

 

A copy of the Firearm Safety Flyer was included in the Board packet. 

 

3.03 Sussex Seniors – Eastern 

 

Members from the Sussex Seniors – Eastern were in attendance.  They thanked the Board and let 

them know they were grateful for funding.  They gave the Board members a card and a gift.  

 

4.  Public Hearing 
 

There was no Public Hearing. 

 

5.  Appointments  
 

There were no Appointments. 

 

6.  Action Items 

 

6.01 Prioritization of Eligible Unpaved Secondary Routes—Planner Michael Poarch 

 

Planner Michael Poarch completed staff report prioritizing eligible unpaved secondary routes in 

Sussex County.  

 

Administrator Douglas provided the overview.  Information included noted that when the 

secondary system of highways was established in 1932, VDOT accepted nearly 34,000 miles of 

unpaved roads. Today, nearly 9,000 miles of state maintained unpaved roads still exist and are an 

important part of each county’s Secondary Six-Year Plan in addressing the unpaved road needs. 

Each county’s secondary allocation included funds designated to improve unpaved roads based on 

their proportion of qualifying unpaved roads with traffic volumes over 50 vehicles per day.   

 

The process of revising the Secondary Six-Year Plan includes an advertised public hearing to 

provide all citizens an opportunity to ask that their road be included in the plan. If all these 

requirements are met, a road will be improved and paved when funding reserved in the plan 

becomes available for spending. 



  

 

4 | Page – Minutes of December 19, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

He discussed program eligibility for the Rural Rustic Roads program.  He stated that the ural Rustic 

Roads program is a pave-in-place program for existing public roadways. The program does not 

allow for any improvements outside of the existing right-of-way, or any site or drainage 

improvements beyond the front slope of the ditch—except for replacement of substandard 

driveway culverts within State-permitted driveways.  

 

The evaluation criteria in prioritizing roadways on the County’s eligible unpaved list for rural 

rustic roads: 

 

a. Must be an unpaved roadway already within the State Secondary System. 

b. Must carry more than 50 vehicles per day (VPD) 

c. Must have a minimum of 30 feet prescriptive right-of-way 

d. Must have a minimum of 3 occupied residential units accessing the road 

e. Must have at least one (1) mile length of unpaved road. 

f. Preference to roads that has more than 30% of the total length of the roadway unpaved. 

g. Preference to roads connected to a State or U.S. Routes such as State Route 40, State Route 

35, U.S. Route 301, and U.S Route 460. 

 

The following roads that were recommended and deemed eligible by Virginia Department of 

Transportation (VDOT): 

 

1. 1.Mill Path Road (Route 611):  This secondary route located within the Henry Election 

District which run approximately 1 ½ miles. The entire length of the roadway is currently 

gravel and unpaved which stretches from Grizzard Road (Rt. 609) to Harrell Road (Rt. 

610).  Reference Exhibit A in Board packet. 

 

2. Hunting Quarter Road (Route 632)z’  This secondary route located within the Yale 

Election District which run approximately 4 ⅞ miles. The road has an unpaved section 

which is approximately 1.17 miles in length which stretches from Hickory Hill Road (Rt. 

608) to Gilliam Road (Rt. 660).  Reference Exhibit B in Board packet. 

 

3. Longevity Road (Route 636):  This secondary route located within the Courthouse 

Election District which run approximately 2 ⅖ miles. The road has an unpaved section 

which is approximately 1.85 miles in length in between the point from Courthouse Road 

(Rt. 626) to Sussex Drive (State Route 40).  Reference Exhibit C in Board packet. 

 

4. Cabin Stick Road (Route 640):  This secondary route located within the Courthouse 

Election District which run approximately 6 ½ miles. The road has an unpaved section 

which is approximately 1.95 miles in length which stretches from Bethel Church Road (Rt. 

637) to Courthouse Road (Rt. 626).  Reference Exhibit D in Board packet. 

 

5. Chinquapin Road (Route 604):  This secondary route located within the Yale/Wakefield 

Election District which run approximately 4 ⅜ miles. The road has an unpaved section 

which is approximately 2.8 miles in length which stretches from Beaver Dam Road (Rt. 

606) to Harrell Mill Road (Rt. 621).  Reference Exhibit E in Board packet. 



  

 

5 | Page – Minutes of December 19, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

  

The VDOT Franklin Residency requested that the county prioritize eligible routes (based on traffic 

counts, numbers of residences, length, etc.) so that this paving prioritization can be factored into 

the county’s six-year plan. Staff requests that the Board adopt a priority list and recommends 

approval of the prioritization as presented. 

 

Staff recommended the Board adopt a priority list and approve unpaved secondary routes 

prioritization as presented. 

 

A copy of the Eligible Unpaved Roads Report was included in the Board packet. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER, seconded by SUPERVISOR BAICY and carried:  

Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopt the priority list and approve unpaved secondary 

routes prioritization as presented.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

6.02  Obligation of Remaining ARPA Funds/Overview of ARPA Projects and Expenditures  

 

Finance Director Kelly Moore reviewed the obligated funded projects and provide an overview of 

ARPA projects and expenditures. 

 

Ms. Moore stated that the Department of the Treasury issued appropriations to localities under the 

Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund and the Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund 

established under the America Rescue Plan Act.  Since 2021 Sussex County was issued 

$2,167,505.00.  A list of the projects approved by the Board were included in the Board packet.  

Most projects have been completed.  An estimated $141,000 of unobligated and unspent funding 

remains.  In the event that some projects may come in under the original allocation, staff 

recommended allocating the remaining balance to an integrated financial software system to move 

Sussex forward in efficiency, comprehension, budgeting, and reporting.  

 

There was discussion that the funding had to be spent or it would have to be returned. 

 

There was a request by Supervisor Baicy to provide one-half of the funding to fix collapsing ceiling 

at Stony Creek Fire Department.  Fire & Rescue Chief Sheffield noted roof and ceiling sagging 

issues.  There was discussion of structure and sizing issues.  There was also discussion of ceiling 

height and having to move trucks, as well front bay being high with back portion lower. 

 

There was discussion that the County didn’t own the building. The Town owned the building.  The 

County doesn’t have direct control. 

 

There was also discussion for funding use for Building and Grounds for $52,000 for trailer and 

Courthouse lighting. 

 

Public Works Director Gary discussed Courthouse lighting and the need for trailer for usage when 

installing road signs.  Mr. Gary noted that his previous quote included costs for hand tools, post 

level, etc. 

 



  

 

6 | Page – Minutes of December 19, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Resolution #24-164 was included in the Board packet for your consideration to appropriate the 

remaining unallocated portion of the 2nd tranche of ARPA funds for County projects and 

reallocate remaining funding from closed ARPA projects. 

 

Budget Amendment #24-164 and a copy of obligated funded projects were included in the Board 

packet. 

 

There was a motion made by Supervisor Tyler which was later withdrawn.  Supervisor Tolliver 

motioned to fund integrated financial software system.  After discussion, there was discussion to 

call make a motion to call the question in order to make a substitute motion. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER, seconded by SUPERVISOR BAICY and carried;  

RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisor hereby make the motion to call the question for the 

substitute motion.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby allocate funding in the amount 

of $52,000 to Building and Grounds to purchase trailer and fix Courthouse lighting. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Fly, Jones, Tyler, White 

Voting nay:  Supervisors Baicy, Futrell, Tolliver 

 

6.03  Courthouse HAVAC Replacement Request 

 

Jeff Gary will present a request to begin the process of replacement of the courthouse HVAC 

system, as well as a request to complete a short-term project to address an immediate need for 

replacement of two hot water pumps related to the HVAC system. Mr. Gary has indicated that 

after the installation of the new BAS system at the courthouse, Trane (contractor) identified a 

problem with one of the hot water pumps not operating. The pump-motor assembly has completely 

failed. These pumps provide hot water for the heating coils for the HVAC system and are designed 

to alternate every seven days—but now we are fully dependent on one pump.  Trane has provided 

a proposal for this project, but staff is soliciting a second quote, so therefore not sharing in this 

memo.  

 

Due to the lead-time being four to six weeks for this project, staff recommends approval to move 

forward immediately to prevent a system failure. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BAICY, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried: 

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby authorize County staff to receive 

a procurement for the replacement, of the HVAC system at the Courthouse, as needed.  All Board 

members present voted aye. 

 

6.04  Finance Committee Recommendation for the Chambliss Elementary School 

 

At the Finance Committee's meeting on December 12, 2024, a motion was passed to recommend 

the acceptance of Rodney Taylor's bid of $15,000 for Chambliss Elementary School property, with 

the inclusion of a 36-month Buyback Clause. 



  

 

7 | Page – Minutes of December 19, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Mr. Taylor plans to undertake renovations in phases, working on portions of the building at a time.  

A Certificate of Occupancy will be required to secure the building/property. Upon acquisition, the 

property and building must be insured. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR WHITE  and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisor hereby approves the Finance 

Committee's recommendation to accept Rodney Taylor's offer of $15,000 for purchase of the 

Chambliss Elementary School property with the inclusion of a 36-month Buyback Clause; and 

 

RESOLVED that Mr. Taylor will be working on portions of the building at time; will need to 

obtain a Certificate of Occupancy to secure ownership of building/property; upon which time the 

building/property must be insured; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Administrator, County Attorney and Rodney 

Taylor are to come together to prepare and bring back to the County at the January 16, 2025 

meeting.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

7.  Citizens’ Comments 

 

 Larry Diehl (Waverly District (Coppahaunk Citizens Against Solar) - Solar farm; 

Blackwater & Winfield solar; number of trees; truck trips traffic impact; explanation for 

notice to speak at Board meetings requirement for everyone; BOS Bylaws Section 1-1 and 

Section 4-1(F); land use presentation for time limit; Section 3-4. 

 Michael Kessinger (Wakefield/Sheriff's Office) – Disappointed regarding ARPA Funding 

discussed prior in meeting; no email advising other departments regarding extra ARPA 

Funds; position cuts; salaries; vacancies at Sheriff's Office; toilets, roofs and office leak; 

employees and inmates housed in ; salary use for holiday pay for Sheriff's office; Sheriff's 

office treatment.. 

 Ernest Giles (Sheriff/Waverly District) – Disappointment; overlooked for certain things; 

life, health and safety; conditions of buildings; audits/inspections; loss of staff; Merry 

Christmas. 

 

8.  Unfinished Business  
 

There was no Unfinished Business. 

  

9.  New Business 

 

9.01  Requested Position Salary Increase for Commonwealth’s Attorney Office 

 
Request for Additional $15,000 for unfilled full-time Attorney Position 

 

Commonwealth’s Attorney Regina Sykes requested a salary increase for an unfilled full time 

position for one of the attorneys in her office.  Ms. Sykes stated that the she's seeking $100,000.  

This position is currently set at $85,000, which means she's seeking a $15,000 increase for this 



  

 

8 | Page – Minutes of December 19, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

unfilled deputy position.   also be requesting an increase for a filled position and use of funds for 

an employee bonus. 

 

CWA Sykes discussed salaries and salary ranges from surrounding jurisdictions.  She noted that 

there are only one attorney position and secretary position that the County pays.  The other 

positions are paid by the Comp Board or fully grant funded positions. 

 

There was clarification that this is the same position that Board approved a $10,000 previously to 

bring the salary to $85,000.  It was clarified that the request is for an additional $15,000 to bring 

this salary for this position to $100,000. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR BAICY and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Commonwealth's 

Attorney request for an additional $15,000 for the unfilled full time position for one of the 

attorneys (Assistant Commonwealth Attorney) bringing this the salary to $100,000; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that these funds are to be taken from the Contingency Fund.  All 

Board members present voted aye. 

 

CWA Sykes stated that there were funds taken from the FY25 budget that should have been taken 

from the FY24 budget.  She noted that the Finance Department corrected this and re-appropriated 

funds back into her FY25 budget.  Ms. Sykes is asking approval to move some of the re-

appropriated funds to the Other Pay line item for bonuses and incentives.  She stated that she 

believes that once you have employees, you have to retain them.  She noted that this incentive 

would be a one-time bonus.  She is not asking for any additional funding.  The fund amount re-

appropriated was $6,600 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR WHITE and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approve the Commonwealth's 

Attorney request to move re-appropriated funding from the FY24 budget back to the FY25 budget 

to the Other Pay line item for bonuses and incentives.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

9.02  Supervisor Fly Concerns 

 

Supervisor Fly requested Chairman Jones to assign the two issues noted to the Finance Committee, 

if the Finance Committee Chair Tolliver will accept that the Finance Committee meet before the 

February meeting and bring back recommendations, working with County Administration on these 

two items.   

 

The two concerns are: 

 

1. . Relocation of County Administration to another Location on the Campus.  County 

Administration needs to be relocated to a more professional space. What spaces are available 

on the County campus? 

2.  Review and Revise EMS 24-Month Plan. Revenues do not allow the construction of two 

new EMS buildings or the conversion of EMS to 



  

 

9 | Page – Minutes of December 19, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

County employees. Therefore, the current two-year plan needs to be revised. 

 

Chairman Jones confirmed the Finance Committee Chair approval. 

 

10.  Board Member Comments 
 

10.01 Blackwater District – Appreciate the gifts that the Seniors gave the Board; however, didn't 

know if it was appropriate to receive money from an organization that the County gives money.  

He gave the gift card back. 

 

10.02  Courthouse District – Merry Christmas and Happy New Year. 

 

10.03  Henry District –  none 

 

10.04  Stony Creek District – Capital projects - 2 New Fire stations; Stony Creek Sewer Plant; 

Courthouse existing or new HVAC; Administration Building upgrade option that's cheaper; 

schools roofs; Sheriff's office; CWA; Water for Megasite; Have several Industrial opportunities 

before General Assembly takes away opportunity; share in sacrifice. 

 

10.05  Wakefield District – Merry Christmas and Happy New Year; looking forward to seeing 

next year and moving forward. 

 

10.06 Waverly District –  Happy Holidays; Commonwealth’s Attorney’s office and Sheriff’s 

Department workload/staffing . 

 

10.07  Yale District – Merry Christmas, Happy Holidays and enjoy!. 

 

11. Closed Session 

 

11.01 Convene to Closed Session 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR WHITE, seconded by SUPERVISOR BAICY and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby enters Closed Session, pursuant 

to  (1) Consultation with the county attorney for legal advice pursuant to Va. Code Section 

2.2.3711(A)8, State Grant Administration; and (2) Disposition of publicly held real property 

because in open meeting would adversely affect would adversely affect the bargaining positions 

or negotiating strategy, applicable Code Section 2.2-3711(A)3, Chambliss Elementary School 

Property.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

11.02./11.03.  Reconvene to Open Session/Certification  

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby reconvened to Open Session; 

and 

 



  

 

10 | Page – Minutes of December 19, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT that that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors convened a 

Closed Meeting on this date pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote in accordance with the 

provisions of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves adoption of resolution for 

certification, to-wit: 

 

WHEREAS, that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors convened a Closed Meeting on this date 

pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom 

of Information Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, requires a certification by the 

Board that such Closed Meeting was conducted inconformity with Virginia law. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby certifies that, to 

the best of each member’s knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted from 

Open Meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the Closed Meeting to which this 

certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the 

motion convening the Closed Meeting were heard discussed or considered. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Baicy, Fly, Futrell, Jones, Tolliver, Tyler, White 

Voting nay:  none 

 

11.04 Action Resulting from Closed Session  

 

There was no action on Closed Session Items. 

 

12.  Adjournment 

 

12.01 Adjournment 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER, seconded by SUPERVISOR BAICY and carried:  

RESOLVED that the December 19, 2024 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of 

Supervisors hereby adjourned at 8:35 p.m.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

12.02 Next Meeting 

 

The next regular Board of Supervisors meeting is scheduled to be held Thursday, January 16, 2025 

at 6 p.m. 



 

Minutes BOS Finance Committee Meeting   December 12 2024  Page 1  

At a Finance Committee Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

Held in the General District Courtroom 

on Thursday, December 12, 2024 - 4 p.m.  

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
C. Eric Fly, Sr. 

Phyllis T. Tolliver 

Steve E. White 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

Beverly Walkup, Planning Director 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

 Clerk of the Board 

 

Item 1.  Call to Order/Determine Quorum (4:20 p.m.) 

 

Chair Tolliver called the December 12, 2024 Finance Committee meeting of the Sussex County 

Board of Supervisors to order. 

 

Item 2.  Invocation 

 

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Fly. 

 

Item 3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 

 

Item 4.  Agenda Amendments 

 

There were no agenda amendments. 

 

Item 5.  Approval of Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR WHITE, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Finance Committee hereby approved the December 12, 2024 

agenda.  All Finance Committee present voted aye. 

 

Item 6.  Discussion of Chambliss Elementary School Property 

 

Chair Tolliver asked Rodney Taylor to provide an overview of his intentions for the Chambliss 

Elementary School property to include what and when.   
 

 



 

Minutes BOS Finance Committee Meeting   December 12 2024  Page 2  

Mr. Rodney Taylor discussed having contacts with businesses that rehab homes/business that have 

experience and skills that are willing to help. 

Mr. Taylor is aware of TPO costs.  He will start simple first and see what needs to be prepared.  

He noted he built his own house. 

His grass roots are in Pocahontas and has family in Pocahontas.  He stated he has five home in the 

Pocahontas area. 

Inquiry of number of rooms in the Chambliss Elementary.  It was estimated to be14 classrooms in 

the building. 

Administrator Douglas noted that an important first step is to have a design profession, an architect 

or engineer, to which will drive what permits will be needed 

There discussion of roof repair/replacement, HVAC system, rewired, plumbing; and asbestos to 

be removed. 

There was discussion of electrical.  It was noted that when the school closed it was in compliance. 

The major concern was roof repairs and costs from a building perspective.  There was mention of 

climate control. 

There was inquiry of size of the County and the number of youth programs  Mr. Taylor noted  who 

had recreation 

School Renovation and Community Partnership 

There was discussion of plans to renovate a school, starting with the front part and cleaning 

the entire school. He mentioned working with a glass man to repair and install glass, and 

getting the school exterminated to remove rodents. Sussex also planned to disin fect the 

school and fix doors with glass. He proposed to complete one room at a time, aiming for one 

room per month. Sussex also mentioned partnering with organizations . 

 

 

Administrator Douglas read comments from the Board of Supervisor Chairman Jones.   

 

1. The citizens of Wakefield want to see the school as a legitimate community center or torn 

down and replaced with a community park and or  playground. 

2. The County has to be protected with a Buyback Clause.  Administrator Douglas noted that 

Chairman Jones stated that the current person of interest advised that he could have things 

done in a year.  He recommends two years to be fully, operational with the entire school.  

If not operational by Code, the County would buy back the school and give the person the 

back the bid purchase paid.   Money used would be a lost to the purchase of interest. 

3. If it is agreed upon to approve the person of interest bid price, there needs to be time to 

allow the County Attorney to prepare a contract to be agreed upon by both parties. 

4. The concerns of the County being shown financially operational for the community and 

maintained for future use. 



 

Minutes BOS Finance Committee Meeting   December 12 2024  Page 3  

5. If the building will not be open by Code, and used by the community, he sees a problem 

and liability for the County. 

 

Mr. Taylor disagreed with the timeframe to be fully operational of two years that the school will 

be bought back from the County.  His intents are to do work in phases, starting with the front part 

of the school first.  

 

There was discussion of being unaware of survey taken by citizens in that area by the person of 

interest.  It was recommended to hold a public meeting to allow input from everyone in the 

community of the sale of the school  There was discussion that the community are basically in 

agreement of wanting a community center.   

 

There discussion of concerns of the inconsistency of the purchase of the other schools. 

 

There was discussion of what standard is to be met. 

 

Item 7.  Recommendation(s) to Board of Supervisors 

 

Finance Committee Chair Tolliver advise Mr. Taylor that the County would have a Buyback 

Clause.  They will like to offer Rodney Taylor the property for $15,000 as stated.  He would have 

36 months to have a secure roof and electrical for portions and obtain a Certificate of Occupancy.  

Mr. Taylor has to have insurance on building on Day 1 of ownership. 

 

Administrator Douglas asked that Mr. Taylor to work with the Building Official of completing 

portions of the building at a time. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR WHITE and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Finance Committee hereby accept the recommendations to 

(1) have a 36-month Buy Back clause; (2) Secure the roof and electrical; (3) obtain the Certificate 

of Occupancy; and (4) have property/building day one of ownership; and  

 

FURTHER RESOLVED that the recommendations are to be forwarded to the Board of 

Supervisors.  All Finance Committee members presented voted aye. 

 

Item 8.  Adjournment 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR WHITE and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Finance Committee hereby adjourned the December 12, 2024 

Finance Committee Meeting at 5:17 p.m.  All members present voted aye. 

 
 



 

Meeting Notes of the Board of Supervisor Board Retreat       December 5 & 6 2024  Page 1  

 

Board of Supervisors Work Session Retreat 

Thursday, December 5 and 6, 2024 – 10:00 a.m. 

Maymont Westover House 

1000 Westover Road, Richmond, VA 23220 

 

Meeting Notes 

 

Portia Pope, Ph.D., Facilitator 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Wayne O. Jones, Chairman 

Steve E. White, Vice Chairman 

Thomas W. Baicy, III 

Alfred G. Futrell 

Phyllis T. Tolliver 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENTSENT 
C. Eric Fly, Sr. 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

David J. Conmy, Deputy County Administrator/ 

     Economic Development Director 

Danielle Powell, County Attorney 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

 Clerk of the Board 

 

Notes for the retreat were captured on flip charts.  The following are general notes.   

 

Day 1: December 5, 2024 

 

The December 5, 2024 Board Retreat was called to order by general consensus.  The Board 

members and staff introduced themselves.   

 

Dr. Portia Pope introduced herself and provided a brief review of her professional background.     

 

The Board members introduced themselves to include their district and a fun fact about themselves. 

 

They opened with an icebreaker by answering trivia questions about Sussex County landmarks 

and legends.  They were divided into two teams, taking turns answering questions. 

 

They discussed advancing towards teamwork and togetherness.  Teamwork in governance refers 

to the collaborative effort among members of a governing body, such as a board of directors, 

advisory committee, or council, to effectively lead, oversee, and make decisions that advance the 

goals and mission of the organization or community they serve. It involves leveraging diverse 



 

Meeting Notes of the Board of Supervisor Board Retreat       December 5 & 6 2024  Page 2  

 

perspectives, skills, and expertise to ensure sound decision-making, strategic direction, and 

accountability. 

 

Sussex County Vision was reviewed.  It is the mission of Sussex County Board of Supervisors in 

partnership with the local government staff to establish the range of public policies and to secure 

and allocate the fiscal and physical resources needed to address the public safety, educational and 

community development needs of county citizens and county businesses in a fiscally prudent and 

responsible manner. 

 

Sussex County is a community dedicated to making strategic choices and decisions that provide 

citizens and businesses alike with a diversified economy, quality public services, and a superior 

quality of life while sustaining the county’s natural environment and rural heritage for future 

generations. 

 

There was discussion of the County envision of economic development in Sussex Green.   

 

There was discussion of two crisis, Stony Creek WWTP and Sussex Service Authority. 

 

There was discussion of the key differences between mission and vision.   

 

The Mission focuses what the organization is doing now either on a short term or ongoing basis.  

It defines the organization's core purpose and activities.   It guides internal operations and external 

understanding and action-oriented. 

 

The Vision focuses on the future of what the organization aspires to achieve on a long-term basis.  

It provides a long term goal and  inspiration.  It motivates internal teams and inspires stakeholders.  

Vision is more aspiration and idealistic.     

 

There was review of the roles and responsibilities of the Board of Supervisors and the County 

Administrator, per the Code of Virginia, Title 15.2, Chapter 6. 

 

It was reviewed that the Board of Supervisors serves as the County's legislative body, holding all 

rights and powers conferred by general law.  They are responsible for setting County policies, 

adopting Ordinances, and overseeing the County's budget.  The Board of Supervisors appoints the 

County Administrator and other key officials. 

 

The County Administrator serves at the Board of Supervisors pleasure.   He acts as the 

administrative head of the County government, responsible for the proper administration of all 

county affairs under the Board's authority.  The County Administrator appoints all the officers and 

employees in the County administrative service, except as otherwise provided.  he prepares and 

submits the annual budget to the Board of Supervisors  The County Administrator handles the day 

to operations of the County. 

 

The Dillon rule was discussed.  It was noted that the Dillon Rule is the principle that local 

government only exercise (1) powers expressly granted by the state, (2) powers necessarily and 

fairly implied from the grant of power, and (3) powers crucial to the existence of local government. 



 

Meeting Notes of the Board of Supervisor Board Retreat       December 5 & 6 2024  Page 3  

 

 

The Board of Supervisors provides strategic direction and sets the framework for governances 

based on the mission, vision and core value. 

The session focused on identifying the County's strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats 

(SWOT) to create a comprehensive and actionable strategic plan. Key participants include the 

County Administrator, Deputy County Administrator, County Attorney, and six County Board of 

Supervisors. 

 

The County Administrator translates these abstract goals into tangible actions by: 

 

 Ensuring operational decisions are mission-driven. 

 Aligning initiatives and projects with the vision for the county’s future. 

 Embedding core values into the organizational culture and daily operations. 

 This partnership ensures that the county remains focused on its purpose (mission), driven by 

its aspirations (vision), and grounded in its principles (core values), while balancing 

democratic oversight with professional management. 

 

Dr. Pope provided the overview that the SWOT analysis provided valuable insights into Sussex 

County's current landscape, identifying specific challenges and opportunities that inform the 

strategic path forward. 

 

Key elements of Teamwork in Governance include (1) shared visions and goals; (2) collective 

decision making; (3) define roles and responsibilities; (4) mutual accountability; (5) open 

communication; (6) respect and trust; (7) diversity and inclusion; and (8) adaptability and 

continuous improvement. 

 

The individuals on the teams or in the room bring their skills, strengths, and experience to the 

group dynamics, decision-making and success. 

 

The pathway to success was discussed to: 

 

 Clarify Objectives:Establish a shared understanding of the organization’s mission, values, and 

strategic priorities. 

  

2. Establish Governance Processes: 
Develop and follow clear processes for meetings, decision-making, and conflict resolution. 

 

3. Promote Inclusivity: 
Ensure all members feel heard and valued, creating an environment where everyone can 

contribute. 

 

4. Encourage Collaboration: 
Facilitate team-building activities, workshops, or retreats to strengthen relationships and trust 

among members. 

 

5. Provide Training and Resources: 



 

Meeting Notes of the Board of Supervisor Board Retreat       December 5 & 6 2024  Page 4  

 

Offer governance training to enhance members’ skills in collaboration, leadership, and ethical 

decision-making. 

 

6. Evaluate and Reflect: 

 

Regularly assess the board’s effectiveness and teamwork through surveys, feedback, or self-

assessment tools. 

 

Weaknesses and threats in limited revenue streams; infrastructure challenges; declining population 

and economic development needs. 

 

The County's strengths include strong agricultural legacy and community engagement. 

 

The County's weaknesses included limited water infrastructure and declining population.   

 

Opportunities lie in the potential of Agritourism development and new taxation strategies to 

include exploring transient, meal, and cigarette taxes to increase revenue with a clear plan for fund 

allocation.  It was noted collaborating with local businesses and schools to improve educational 

outcomes and support workforce readiness. 

 

Threats lie in declining revenue streams and aging infrastructure. 

 

The findings underscore the importance of addressing weaknesses, such as infrastructure 

limitations, while leveraging strengths like the county's agricultural heritage.   

 

A detailed SWOT matrix table is included in the report to summarize these findings clearly and 

concisely. Building on this foundation, the following recommendations outline actionable steps to 

drive economic growth, enhance community engagement, and establish a sustainable fiscal 

foundation. analysis provided valuable insights into Sussex County's current landscape, 

identifying specific challenges and opportunities that inform the strategic path forward.  These 

findings underscore the importance of addressing weaknesses, such as infrastructure limitations,   

while leveraging strengths like the county's agricultural heritage. 

 

Dr. Pope findings and analysis included the following weaknesses and threats included: 

 

Limited Revenue Streams: Current funding is insufficient to support major projects and 

economic growth. 

 

Infrastructure Challenges:  Issues with water accessibility and availability hinder business 

attraction and retention. 

 

Declining Population:  An 11% decrease from 2010 to 2020 highlights the need for strategies to 

stabilize and grow the population. 

 

Economic Diversification Needs: The County requires a diversified economy to align with its 

long-term vision. 



 

Meeting Notes of the Board of Supervisor Board Retreat       December 5 & 6 2024  Page 5  

 

 

Dr. Pope provided that opportunities include: 

 

Immediate Funding Projects: Prioritizing initiatives that generate quick revenue to address 

critical capital improvements. 

 

Long-Term Financial Planning: To promote long-term economic growth and fiscal health, 

Sussex County should focus on supporting local businesses through incentives like grants or low-

interest loans and by providing technical assistance to encourage growth and job creation, 

ultimately expanding the tax base. To attract new industries, the county can offer targeted 

incentives such as tax abatements and workforce development grants while partnering with 

economic development agencies to identify and recruit businesses that align with local goals. 

 

For fiscal sustainability, the county should work with finance staff to build stabilization funds by 

setting aside surplus revenue during prosperous years, ensuring that resources are available during 

downturns. Strategic debt financing for capital projects can be planned by collaborating with 

finance teams to align repayment schedules with expected project benefits. 

00 

Engaging the community is key. Host public budget forums where residents can voice their 

priorities and work with communications staff to create clear, accessible reports detailing revenue 

sources, expenditures, and progress toward goals. For forecasting, finance staff can use advanced 

tools and collaborate with data analysts to conduct scenario analysis and to compare the county’s 

performance against peer counties, identifying opportunities for improvement. 

 

To generate innovative revenue, Sussex County can partner with sustainability experts to issue 

green bonds for environmentally focused projects and collaborate with tourism boards to develop 

events and attractions that boost sales and occupancy tax revenues. By fostering collaboration 

across departments and involving community stakeholders, Sussex County can build a 

comprehensive and sustainable strategy for economic development and fiscal resilience. 

 

Dr. Pope noted the following: 

 

The Importance of Economic Development in County Government 

 

She noted economic development is a cornerstone of effective county governance, serving as the 

foundation for addressing the diverse needs of communities. It enables counties to attract 

businesses, create jobs, and generate revenue that supports critical infrastructure, public services, 

and quality of life improvements. Strategic decision-making in economic development ensures 

that limited resources are allocated efficiently to projects with the greatest potential impact.  By 

prioritizing initiatives that yield sustainable revenue streams, counties can better address pressing 

needs such as education, healthcare, and infrastructure while fostering resilience against economic 

downturns. A robust economic development strategy not only strengthens the fiscal health of the 

County but also creates an environment where businesses and residents can thrive. 

 

Agritourism: A Long-Term Strategy for Economic Growth 

 



 

Meeting Notes of the Board of Supervisor Board Retreat       December 5 & 6 2024  Page 6  

 

Agritourism presents a unique opportunity for Sussex County to leverage its agricultural  heritage, 

particularly its legacy in the peanut industry, as a catalyst for economic growth over the next 3–5 

years. Agritourism combines agriculture and tourism by offering visitors authentic farm-based 

experiences, such as tours, festivals, and farm-to-table dining. This strategy diversifies the 

County's economy by drawing tourists, boosting local businesses, and increasing revenue streams. 

To ensure the success of an agritourism initiative, it is vital to analyze financial outputs and returns 

on investment (ROI). This includes assessing upfront costs, such as infrastructure and marketing, 

against potential gains from increased tourism, local spending, and job creation. A well-executed 

agritourism plan positions the County as a destination for cultural and recreational experiences, 

enhancing its economic resilience while preserving its agricultural legacy. 

 

Addressing Economic Distress and Infrastructure Challenges 

 

Strategic planning becomes imperative when a county faces economic distress coupled with aging 

infrastructure and an urgent need for capital improvements. Economic hardship often limits a 

county's ability to fund necessary projects, exacerbating issues like inadequate water systems, 

outdated facilities, and declining public services. These challenges can deter potential businesses 

and residents, further weakening the local economy. 

 

To combat this, counties must prioritize projects that yield high-impact results, such as improving 

essential infrastructure and addressing immediate needs while laying the groundwork for long-

term growth. Exploring diverse funding sources, including grants, public-private partnerships, and 

targeted taxes, can help bridge resource gaps. By addressing infrastructure challenges proactively, 

counties can attract investment, support economic activity, and ensure that residents and 

businesses have access to the resources and services needed to thrive. 

 

Consequences of Failing to Act on Economic and Financial Risks 

 

Failure to address economic and financial risks through strategic direction can have severe and 

far-reaching consequences for county governments. Research consistently shows that inaction 

exacerbates existing vulnerabilities, leading to a downward spiral in economic stability and 

community well-being. When no clear strategic direction is established, counties risk eroding 

public trust, as residents and businesses perceive leadership as ineffective or disconnected from 

pressing needs. Unaddressed risks such as declining revenues, population loss, and aging 

infrastructure can compound over time, making them increasingly difficult and costly to resolve. 

 

Economically, a lack of action can result in diminished competitiveness, as counties fail to attract 

or retain businesses, jobs, and investments. Financially, it can lead to budget shortfalls, reduced 

credit ratings, and an overreliance on emergency measures, which often come at a higher cost. 

The absence of a strategic framework also means missed opportunities to leverage grants, 

partnerships, or innovative solutions that could mitigate risks and create growth. As evidenced in 

cases of distressed municipalities, such as during its fiscal crisis, failure to act decisively not only 

deepens economic stagnation but also undermines the quality of life for residents, further eroding 

the County's social and economic fabric. 

 



 

Meeting Notes of the Board of Supervisor Board Retreat       December 5 & 6 2024  Page 7  

 

Proactively developing and implementing a strategic plan is essential to mitigating these risks. It 

enables counties to allocate resources effectively, anticipate challenges, and create a roadmap for 

sustainable growth. Without such a plan, counties leave themselves vulnerable to a reactive cycle 

of crisis management, which often results in higher costs and diminished outcomes compared to 

a proactive 

 

Dr. Pope provided the following recommendations: 

 

Public Communication and Engagement 

 

Develop a robust strategy to educate residents on the County's strengths, risks, and future plans. 

 

Garner public support for the County's strategic direction through transparent and frequent 

updates. 

 

Design a strategy to educate the public on the County's goals, challenges, and progress, fostering 

transparency and trust. 

 

Provide regular updates to stakeholders and the community on achievements and adjustments to 

strategic initiatives. 

 

Improved Board Communication: 

 

Provide high-level updates to the County Board of Supervisors on county operations and key 

issues in the reports or documents shared with the Board. 

 

Economic Growth and Revenue Strategies: 

 

Conduct Further Research on Agritourism: 

 Explore the feasibility and potential of agritourism as a key economic driver, focusing on 

leveraging Sussex County's agricultural legacy, particularly the peanut industry. 

 Assess infrastructure needs, marketing strategies, and stakeholder partnerships required 

for successful implementation. 

 Evaluate the financial outputs and return on investment to ensure alignment with long-

term economic goals. 
 

Make Informed Decisions on Taxation:  

 Analyze the potential revenue and implications of introducing or increasing transient and 

cigarette taxes. 

 Engage stakeholders to understand community impact and build public support for tax 

policy changes. 

 Develop a clear plan for allocating the additional revenue to priority areas such as 

infrastructure improvements, education, and economic development. 

 

Education and Workforce Development: 



 

Meeting Notes of the Board of Supervisor Board Retreat       December 5 & 6 2024  Page 8  

 

 Strengthen partnerships with schools and businesses to improve educational outcomes 

and workforce readiness. 

 

Focus on Infrastructure and Capital Projects: 

 Prioritize and plan projects that address water accessibility and significant infrastructure 

needs. 

 Leverage immediate revenue-generating projects to support these efforts. 

 

Update Personnel Policies: 

• Revise and modernize the County's personnel policies, which have not been updated 

in six years (since 2018), to reflect current best practices and compliance standards. 

 

Supervisor Training and Development: 

 
Engaging the County Board of Supervisors in the Virginia Certified County Supervisors’ 

Program, offered by the Virginia Association of Counties (VACo),will strengthen their 

leadership and governance skills and prepare them for effective decision-making and strategic 

planning. This comprehensive program provides training on essential topics, including public 

budgeting and finance, planning and land use, ethical decision-making, policy development, and 

fostering community engagement. It also delves into legal frameworks, regulatory compliance, 

and collaborative leadership to equip supervisors with the knowledge needed to address complex 

challenges. 

 

Through a combination of in-depth classroom sessions and practical assignments, supervisors gain 

a thorough understanding of their roles, powers, and responsibilities within county operations. The 

program emphasizes critical skills such as effective communication, conflict resolution, and 

consensus-building, all of which are vital for managing competing priorities and building trust 

with stakeholders. By investing in this professional development opportunity, Sussex County 

ensures its leadership is well-prepared to navigate current challenges, align efforts with strategic 

goals, and support initiatives that enhance community growth and resilience. 

 

Develop a Strategic Framework with SMART Goals: 

 

Outline the County's long-term strategic goals, ensuring alignment with its vision and priorities. 

 

 Create detailed action steps to achieve these goals using the SMART framework (Specific, 

Measurable, Achievable, Relevant, and Time-bound). 

 Regularly review and update the framework to reflect progress and adjust for emerging 

needs or challenges. 

 

Schedule Follow-Up Sessions: 

 

Refine strategic goals and track progress. 

 

Board members participated in an Icebreaker Activity of reimaging Sussex County.  Fun fact 

questions were asked about areas of the County.   



 

Meeting Notes of the Board of Supervisor Board Retreat       December 5 & 6 2024  Page 9  

 

 

The session focused on identifying the County's strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats 

(SWOT) to create a comprehensive and actionable strategic plan. Key participants included the 

County Administrator, Deputy County Administrator, County Attorney, and six County Board of 

Supervisors. 

 

The Primary Objectives Achieved: 

 

 Identified key weaknesses and threats affecting the County's growth. 

 Proposed opportunities to foster economic and fiscal development. 

 Formulated actionable recommendations for communication and operations 

 improvement. 

  

Scope of Work and Deliverables 

 

Pre-Planning Activities: 

 

 Conducted consultations to understand objectives. 

 Developed a detailed agenda focusing on SWOT analysis, goal setting, and action 

 planning. 

 Prepared materials for facilitation. 

 

Board of Supervisors identified agility and flexibility as critical components in addressing future 

challenges. These principles guided ther discussions and decision-making during this workshop. 

 

By general consensus, the December 5, 204 Board of Supervisors Retreat was recessed to Friday, 

December 6, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. 

 

 

 

 

  



 

Meeting Notes of the Board of Supervisor Board Retreat       December 5 & 6 2024  Page 10  

 

Portia Pope, Ph.D., Facilitator 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Wayne O. Jones, Chairman 

Steve E. White, Vice Chairman 

Thomas W. Baicy, III 

Alfred G. Futrell 

Phyllis T. Tolliver 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENTSENT 
C. Eric Fly, Sr. 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

David J. Conmy, Deputy County Administrator/ 

     Economic Development Director 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

 Clerk of the Board 

 

Notes for the retreat were captured on flip charts.  The following are general notes.   

 

Day 2: December 6 

 

There was recap of Day 1, December 5, 2025. 

 

Reviewed the key insights and progress from the first day. 

 

Discussed the differences in policies and procedure.  They discussed the need to update the 

Policy and Pay and Classification.   

 

Everyone completed the Dominance Influence Steadiness Conscientiousness (DISC) Test of their 

personality type. 

 

Closing remarks and next steps included  

 

 final reflections, action steps, and expressions of gratitude for participation 

 Okay with considering adoption of Agritourism ordinance 

 Potential Revenue sources to research and estimate revenue projections 

 Hotel lodging tax 

 Cigarette tax 

 Nottoway River 

 Previous “Sussex Gone Nuts” motto 

 Discussion of partnerships with other relevant stakeholders 

. 

By general consensus adjourned the December 6, 2024 Board Retreat at 12:30 p.m. 



 

Meeting Notes of the Board of Supervisor Board Retreat       December 5 & 6 2024  Page 11  

 

 



























SUSSEX COUNTY 

TREASURER'S REPORT 

AND 

FINANCIAL UPDATE 

SUBMITTED BY DESTE J. COX, TREASURER 

DECEMBER 31, 2024 

Bank Reconciliation 
Balance Sheet - Treasurer's Accountability Fund 
Income & Expense Statement - General Fund 
General Fund Revenue/Expenditure Summary 
General Fund Expenditure by Depattment 
Revenue/Expense Summary 

o Capital Projects Fund
o Reserve Fund
o CSAFund

2.03

Consent Agenda - Page 1

sricks
Highlight



Consent Agenda - Page 2



Consent Agenda - Page 3



Consent Agenda - Page 4



Consent Agenda - Page 5



Consent Agenda - Page 6



Consent Agenda - Page 7



Consent Agenda - Page 8



BUILDING 

INSPECTIONS  

DEPARTMENT 

  January 16, 2025 

Monthly Reports 

 

2.04 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
               
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Consent Agenda - Page 9



Building department                                                                                    County of Sussex, Virginia   

MATT WESTHEIMER , mcp, cbo                                                                                                                    P. O. Box 1397 Sussex, Virginia 23884 

building official                                                                                                                                                      Fax (434) 246-8259 

(434) 246-4390  

 

 

Sussexcountyva.gov 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:  January 3, 2025 

 

TO:  Richard Douglas, County Administrator  

     

FROM: Matt Westheimer, Building Official        

 

SUBJECT: December 2024 - Monthly Report 

 

 

Please accept this as the December 2024 update for the Building Department.    

BUILDING ACTIVITY  

 December 2024 
 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing 

& 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Misc. 

Fee 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

8 5 2 4 86      $0 $489,072.00 $4,368.63 

 

 December 2023 
 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing 

& 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspection

s 

Misc. 

Fee 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

10 14 7 9 103 0 $834,277.00 $8,704.43 

 

 July 2024 – June 2025 (Fiscal Totals) 

 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing 

& 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Misc. 

Fee 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

62 74 21 36 607 $1204 $3,885,800.00 $40,603.55 

 

Inspections completed within 24 hours For December 100% 

Plans reviewed within 10 business days For December 100% 

 

Consent Agenda - Page 10



SUSSEX COUNTY

INSPECTIONS PERFORMED BY DISTRICT

DECEMBER 2024

DISTRICT INSPECTIONS

BLACKWATER 9

COURTHOUSE 7

WAVERLY 6

STONY CREEK 17

WAKEFIELD 4

HENRY 20

YALE 23

BLACKWATER
10%

COURTHOUSE
8%

WAVERLY
7%

STONY CREEK
20%

WAKEFIELD
5%

HENRY
23%

YALE
27%

INSPECTIONS BY DISTRICT

Consent Agenda - Page 11



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Recognition #3.01 

Subject:   Recognition of Deputy Clerk of Court Carolyn Matthews for 50 Consecutive Years of Service to 

Sussex County  

Board Meeting Date:  January 16 2025 

============================================================================== 

Summary:    Carolyn Matthews, Deputy Clerk of Court, will be recognized for 50 consecutive years of 
service to Sussex County.  After an initial period of employment with the County from 1965 to 1967 and 
then time spent starting her family, Ms. Matthews rejoined the County on January 1, 1975.  She has been 
during the past 50 years, and continues to be, a tremendous asset for Sussex County.  Clerk of Court Gary 
Williams will provide some remarks; and will be presented with a small gift. 

Recommendation:  No action is requested.   

Attachment:   N/A 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  N/A 

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY: 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ Jones             ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

S. White ___ ___ 



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Recognition #3.02 

Subject:   FY24 Audit – Taylor Stover (Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates) 

Board Meeting Date:  January 16 2025 

============================================================================== 

Summary:    Taylor Stover with Robinson, Farmer, Cox  Associates is scheduled to present a summary 
of the FY24 audit.  However, the auditors are still waiting on the school system’s GASB 75 OPEB 
actuarial report to finalize the audit (financial statements are substantially completed).   

Recommendation:  No action is requested.   

Attachment:   None 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  N/A 

MOTION BY: SECONDED BY: 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ Jones     ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White  ___ ___ 



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Public Hearing Item #4.01 

Subject:  Conditional Use Permit #2024-05 

Board Meeting Date:  January 16 2025 

============================================================================== 

Summary:   The applicant, Henry Hayes under CUP #2024-05 seeks a conditional use permit for a 
shooting range on approximately 34 acres of land. The intent is to operate an outdoor shooting 
range/training facility as a commercial business to be available to the public, however, it will be 
membership based. 

Recommendation:  Staff recommended approval for Conditional Use Permit #2024-05 
contingent with certain conditions. However, the Planning Commission recommended denial of 
Conditional Use Permit 2024-05 to the Board of Supervisors on December 2, 2024 with a vote of 
4-2 with the consideration of those conditions.

Attachments:  Application with supplement materials, staff report and recommendations, State 
agencies/Department Comments, and written public comments 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:   TBD 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White ___ ___ 

Public Hearings - Page 1



Public Hearings - Page 2



Public Hearings - Page 3



Public Hearings - Page 4



Public Hearings - Page 5



Public Hearings - Page 6



Public Hearings - Page 7



Public Hearings - Page 8



Public Hearings - Page 9



Public Hearings - Page 10



Public Hearings - Page 11



Public Hearings - Page 12



Public Hearings - Page 13



Public Hearings - Page 14



Public Hearings - Page 15



Public Hearings - Page 16



Public Hearings - Page 17



Public Hearings - Page 18



Public Hearings - Page 19



Public Hearings - Page 20



Public Hearings - Page 21



Public Hearings - Page 22



Public Hearings - Page 23



Public Hearings - Page 24



Public Hearings - Page 25



Public Hearings - Page 26



Public Hearings - Page 27



Public Hearings - Page 28



Public Hearings - Page 29



Public Hearings - Page 30



Public Hearings - Page 31



Public Hearings - Page 32



Public Hearings - Page 33



Public Hearings - Page 34



Public Hearings - Page 35



Public Hearings - Page 36



Public Hearings - Page 37



Public Hearings - Page 38



Public Hearings - Page 39



Public Hearings - Page 40



Public Hearings - Page 41



 
 

Notice of Public Hearing 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 
 
Pursuant to Section 15.2-2204 of the Code of Virginia, notice is hereby given that the Sussex 

County Board of Supervisors will hold a public hearing on Thursday, January 16, 2025 at 6:00 

p.m. in the General District Courtroom - 15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex, Virginia 23884. 

 

The Board of Supervisors will consider, and may take action upon, the following: 

Conditional Use Permit #2024-05:  The applicant, Henry Hayes, seeks a Conditional Use Permit 

for a shooting range on Tax Parcel 12-A-2 consisting of approximately 34 acres of land. The intent 

is to operate an outdoor shooting range/training facility as a commercial business to be available 

to the public on a membership basis.  The property is located on the north side of Nary Lane, 

approximately 0.2 miles from the end of Jolly Road (Rt. 659) in Prince George County along the 

County line in Sussex County.   

Citizens are encouraged to attend and comment during the public hearings.  Comments may also 

be submitted in writing to sricks@sussexcountyva.gov or via mail to the County Administration, 

P. O. Box 1397, 20135 Princeton Road, Sussex, VA 23884, no later than noon on Thursday, 

January 16, 2025. Any persons needing assistance or accommodations under the provisions of the 

American Disabilities Act should contact Michael Poarch at 434-246-1043 at least seven (7) days 

in advance of the hearing.  

 

A copy of the Conditional Use Permit application along with supporting documentation, are 

available for review in the Department of Planning and Zoning during regular business hours 

Monday through Friday from 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., phone number (434) 246-1000. 

 

Authorized by:  Beverly Walkup 

Director of Planning 

1/1/2025 & 1/8/2025 

 

Public Hearings - Page 42



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Public Hearing Item #4.02 
 
Subject:  School System FY24 Budget Carryover Request/Budget Amendment  
 
Board Meeting Date:  January 16 2025 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:   A public hearing has been scheduled to consider two budget amendments for the 
Sussex County School Division (in excess of one percent of the county budget, so a public hearing 
is required prior to consideration of a budget amendment).  Dr. Hamlin will be available at the 
meeting to provide a summary of the requested resolutions. 
 
Specifically, the school division has a balance of $464,326 in state tutoring assistance funding (All 
In Program) to be spent in FY25 and FY26.  In addition, the school system received a state school 
safety and security grant near the end of the prior fiscal year in the amount of $75,579.   
 
At the conclusion of the public hearing, staff recommends approval of the attached resolution 
amending the FY25 operating budgets to account for $539,905 in carryover funds. 
 
The second resolution accounts for an additional $1,958,948 in federal, state, and local funds for 
regular and Title I operations that have been received for the FY25 operating budget.  At the 
conclusion of the public hearing, staff recommends approval of this attached resolution as well. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommended approval of both attached resolutions 
 
Attachments:  Resolutions #25-6 Carryover Funds and #25-07 Amendment to the Fiscal Year 
2025 Sussex School Board and County Budgets 
 
============================================================================== 
 
ACTION:   That the Board approve Resolutions #25-6 Carryover Funds and #25-07 Amendment 
to the Fiscal Year 2025 Sussex School Board and County Budgets 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
  
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 

Fly  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  

Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 

White  ___ ___ 

      
Public Hearings - Page 43



 

 

COUNTY OF SUSSEX 
 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

PROPOSED BUDGET AMENDMENT TO 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 BUDGET 

 
 
Notice is hereby given pursuant to Section 15.2-2507, Code of Virginia (1950, as amended), the 
Sussex County Board of Supervisors will conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving 
comments on the proposed Budget Amendment to the County and the School Division FY 2025 
Budget on January 16, at 6:00 p.m., or as soon as may be heard, in the General District 
Courtroom, Sussex Judicial Center, 15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex, Virginia.   
 

The School Division was awarded State Funds for the “ALL IN” program for the purpose of 
intensive tutoring, the VA Literacy Act and to address chronic absenteeism in the amount of 
$639,325 with a balance $464,327 unspent.   The School Division was also awarded a School 

Safety and Security Grant from the Virginia Department of Education finished FY24 with a 
Local Fund balance of $539,905 due to unspent State Funds.  State Funds were awarded in 
FY24.  The School Division also received a School Safety & Security of $75,579.  These funds 
are allowed to be carried over, as per 22.1-175.5 for FY25 and FY26.  The total carryover 
amount is $539,905.  
 
This amendment exceeds one percent of the total expenditures shown in the currently adopted 
budget.   
 
Members of the public will be able to speak at the public hearing. Comments on the proposed 
budget amendments can also be submitted prior to the meeting no later than 2:00 p.m. on 
Wednesday, January 15, 2025 to the County Administrator’s Office, PO Box 1397 – Sussex, VA 
23884 or sricks@sussexcountyva.gov no later  
 
Please contact Kelly Moore, Finance Director, at 434.246.1000 or kmoore@sussexcountyva.gov  
for any additional questions. 
 
A copy of the proposed resolution amending the budget is available for review by the public in 
the Sussex County Administration office located 20135 Princeton Road, Sussex, Virginia 23884 
during business hours Monday - Friday, 8:30 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. 
 
 

Richard Douglas 
County Administrator 

1/1 & 8/2025 
 

Public Hearings - Page 46

mailto:kmoore@sussexcountyva.gov


 

 

COUNTY OF SUSSEX 
 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

PROPOSED BUDGET AMENDMENT TO 
FISCAL YEAR 2025 BUDGET 

 
 
Notice is hereby given pursuant to Section 15.2-2507, Code of Virginia (1950, as amended), the 
Sussex County Board of Supervisors will conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving 
comments on the proposed Budget Amendment to the County and School Division annual FY 
2025 Budget on January 16, 2025 at 6:00 p.m., or as soon as may be heard, in the General District 
Courtroom, Sussex Judicial Center, 15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex, Virginia.   
 

     The School Division finished FY24 with a Local Fund balance of $539,905 due to unspent 
State Funds.  State Funds were awarded in FY24 for the “ALL IN ” program for the purpose 
of intensive tutoring, the VA Literacy Act and to address chronic absenteeism in the amount 
of $639,325 with a balance $464,327 unspent.  The School Division also received a School 
Safety & Security Grant from the Virginia Department of Education of $75,579.  These funds 
were not able to be spent and were allowed to be carried over, as per 22.1-175.5 for FY25 
and FY26.  The total carryover amount is $539,905.  
 
This amendment exceeds one percent of the total expenditures shown in the currently adopted 
budget.   
 
Members of the public will be able to speak at the public hearing. Comments on the proposed 
budget amendments can also be submitted prior to the meeting no later than 2:00 p.m. on 
Wednesday, January 15, 2025 to the County Administrator’s Office, PO Box 1397 – Sussex, VA 
23884 or sricks@sussexcountyva.gov no later  
 
Please contact Kelly Moore, Finance Director, at 434.246.1000 or kmoore@sussexcountyva.gov  
for any additional questions. 
 
A copy of the proposed resolution amending the budget is available for review by the public in 
the Sussex County Administration office located 20135 Princeton Road, Sussex, Virginia 23884 
during business hours Monday - Friday, 8:30 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. 
 
 

Richard Douglas 
County Administrator 

1/1 & 8/2025 
 

Public Hearings - Page 47

mailto:kmoore@sussexcountyva.gov


BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Appointments #5.01 
 
Subject:  Appointment to Planning Commission 
 

Board Meeting Date: January 16 2025 
 
============================================================================ 
 
Summary:  There is a vacancy on the Planning Commission for the Henry District.  An 
appointment needs to be made to fill this vacancy starting immediately, expiring January 31, 
2029. 
 
Also, the terms of Commissioner Massenburg (Yale District) and Commissioner Edmond 
(Member-at-Large) on the Planning Commission has expired.  Staff has contacted both 
Commissioners.  They are willing to continue to serve, if reappointed.   
 
Should they be reappointed, their terms will expire April 30, 2028, and June 30, 2027, 
respectively.   
 
Recommendation: That the Sussex County Board of Supervisors reappoint Commissioner 
Massenburg (Yale District) and Commissioner Edmond (Member-at-Large) on the Planning 
Commission, with terms expiring April 30, 2028, and June 30, 2027, respectively.   
 
Attachment:  Copies of  Confirmation Letters  

 
============================================================================ 
 
ACTION:  That the Sussex County Board of Supervisors reappoint Commissioner Massenburg (Yale 
District) and Commissioner Edmond (Member-at-Large) on the Planning Commission, with terms 
expiring April 30, 2028, and June 30, 2027, respectively.   
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Jones  ___ ___ 
 
Fly  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
     

White  ___ ___ 



 

COUNTY OF SUSSEX 
 

 
 

Board of Supervisors 

 

Wayne O. Jones, Chairman 

Steve White, Vice Chairman  

Thomas W. Baicy, III 

C. Eric Fly, Sr.    

Alfred G. Futrell                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

Phyllis T.  Tolliver 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

 

 

 

 

                   

Post Office Box 1397 

20135 Princeton Road 

Sussex, Virginia 23884 

    Richard Douglas 

                County Administrator 
           rdouglas@sussexcountyva.gov 

 
 

Telephone: (434) 246-1000 

Facsimile: (434) 246-6013 

www.sussexcountyva.gov 

 

 

January 10, 2025 
 

Terry Massenburg 
P.O. Box 330 
Stony Creek, VA 2882 

 

       Re:  Planning Commission 
 
Dear Ms. Massenburg: 
 
Our records indicate that your appointment to the Planning Commission has expired.  So that we may have 
adequate documentation, this correspondence is being forwarded to you to ask whether or not you would 
like to be reappointed to the Planning Commission. 
 
Should you wish to be reappointed, your term will expire April 30, 2028.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Shilton R. Butts 
Assistant to County Administrator/ 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
====================================================================================== 
 
    X       I wish to be reappointed to the Planning Commission. 
 
______ I do not wish to be reappointed to the Planning Commission. 
 
 
Signature:   Verified via telephone call    Date: ___________________ 

 

 
 

mailto:rdouglas@sussexcountyva.gov
http://www.sussexcountyva.gov/






BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Appointments #5.02 
 
Subject:  Appointment to Crater District Area Agency on Aging 
 
Board Meeting Date:  January 16 2025 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary: At the Board’s April 2024 regular meeting, Supervisor Fly was appointed to fill an 
unexpired term as Sussex’s Representative for Crater District Area Agency on Aging.  His term 
expired December 31, 2024.   
 
I have spoken with Supervisor Fly.  He wishes to be reappointed.  His term will be a two-year 
term, expiring December 31, 2026.   
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends the appointment of Supervisor Fly to continue to serve on 
Crater District Area Agency on Aging as Sussex’s representative. 
 
Attachment: N/A 
 
============================================================================== 
 
ACTION:  That the Board appoint Supervisor Fly to serve on Crater District Area Agency on 
Aging as Sussex’s representative. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Jones  ___ ___ 
 
Fly  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
     

White  ___ ___ 



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Appointments #5.03 
 
Subject:  Appointment to Board of Zoning Appeals 
 

Board Meeting Date: January 16 2025 
 
============================================================================ 
 
Summary:  The term of Mr. C. Tyrone Griffin, on the Board of Zoning Appeals will expire January 
31, 2025. Staff contacted Mr. Griffin, he is willing to serve, if reappointment.   
 
If reappointed, Mr. Griffin’s term will expire January 31, 2028. 
 
Recommendation: That the Sussex County Board of Supervisors reappoint C. Tyrone Griffin to 
the Board of Zoning Appeal with a term expiring January 31, 2028. 
 
Attachment:  A copy of Confirmation Letter for Mr. Griffin. 

 
============================================================================ 
 
ACTION:  That the Sussex County Board of Supervisors reappoint C. Tyrone Griffin to the Board 
of Zoning Appeal with a term expiring January 31, 2028. 
 

 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Jones  ___ ___ 
 
Fly  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
     

White  ___ ___ 





BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Action Items #6.01 

Subject:  Revised Historic Courthouse/Administrative Space Proposal – Andrew Moore, Glave & 
Holmes 

Board Meeting Date:   January 16 2025 

============================================================================== 

Summary:  Andrew Moore with Glave & Holmes will present a “Plan B” conceptual design 
recommendation for the proposed courthouse expansion/restoration project (a copy of the 
presentation is attached for your review).  A reduction/change in the scope of the original 
recommendation, Plan B would result in a substantial cost savings but meet the following goals: 

 Provide administrative space that would allow for the removal of the existing “Blue Box”

 Stabilize and restore the historic courthouse structure

 Provide permanent meeting space for the Board of Supervisors and other organizations

 Provide a working facility for Public Works

 Maintain all existing space for the Clerk of Court

Recommendation: That the Board approve of the proposed Plan B and authorization to proceed 
with a contract with Glave & Holmes on the preliminary design of the project. 

Attachment:  Glave & Holmes presentation 

============================================================================== 

REQUESTED ACTION:  TBD 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ Jones ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White    ____ ____ 

Action Items - Page 1



CONCEPTUAL DESIGN PRESENTATION
Sussex County Courthouse Expansion & Renovation

January, 2025
Action Items - Page 2



Conceptual Overview
January, 2025 Sussex County Courthouse - Expansion & Renovation

SITE PLAN - EXISTING

JUDICIAL CENTER

SHERIFF’S OFFICE COMMONWEALTH’S 
ATTORNEY

OFFICE BUILDING
(TREASURER AND COMM’R 

OF THE REVENUE)

OLD ADMIN 
BUILDING

(CURRENT DEPT. OF 
PUBLIC WORKS)

CLERK OF COURT

HISTORIC 
COURTHOUSE

THORTON SQUARE

TH
O

RT
O

N
 S

Q
U

A
RE

THORTON SQUARE

C
O

U
RTH

O
U

SE RD
OLD FORTY RD

0’ 64’16’ 32’

Site Plan Legend
EXISTING BUILDING (NOT IN SCOPE)

EXISTING BUILDING

NEW CONSTRUCTION

Action Items - Page 3



Conceptual Overview
January, 2025 Sussex County Courthouse - Expansion & Renovation

EXISTING SPACE ORGANIZATION

Office Building
TREASURER & COMMISSIONER OF THE REVENUE

TREASURER  ± 1,716 SF     
COMMISSIONER ± 1,017 SF
SHARED     ± 838 SF

TOTAL   ± 3,571 SF

Old Administration Building
CURRENT DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

TOTAL   ± 1,995 SF

Clerk of Court Building

TOTAL  ± 2,117 SF

Historic Courthouse/County Administration

GROUND FLOOR  2,455 SF    
SECOND FLOOR  2,222 SF

TOTAL  4,677 SF

Area Available in
Current Buildings

    
TOTAL   15,224 SF

0’ 16’4’ 8’

Organization of Space Legend

SHARED

CLERK OF COURT 

REGISTRAR

HISTORICAL SOCIETY

PUBLIC WORKS

COMM’R OF THE REVENUE

TREASURER

HISTORICAL SOCIETY

PUBLIC WORKS

CLERK OF COURT

REGISTRAR

SHARED

SHARED CLERK OF COURT

Historic Courthouse
GROUND FLOOR  ± 3,887 SF    
SECOND FLOOR  ± 3,654 SF

TOTAL   ± 7,541 SF

Action Items - Page 4



Conceptual Overview
January, 2025 Sussex County Courthouse - Expansion & Renovation

TABULATION OF SPACE NEEDS

 Space Description  Xstg # 
 Occ 
Per 

 Size 
(sf) 

 Xstg Total 
Size (sf) 

 # 
Needed 

 Total Size 
Needed (sf)  Notes 

 Entry 1 1 233 233 1 233

 Break Area 1 0 101 101 1 101

 Bathroom 1 1 21 21 1 21 Current space is not accessible

 Records / Open Office 1 3 640 640 1 640

 Records (Addition) 1 0 1,122 1,122 1 1,122

 Records (Courthouse 
Addition) 

1 0 911 911 1 911

 Clerk's Office 1 1 183 183 1 183

 TOTAL 3,211 3,211 Clerk requests no reduction in 
area

 Clerk of Court 

 Space Description  Xstg # 
 Occ 
Per 

 Size 
(sf) 

 Xstg Total 
Size (sf) 

 # 
Needed 

 Total Size 
Needed (sf) Notes

 Welcome Area 0 0 0 0 1 120
 Storage 1 0 816 816 1 400
 Exhibit Space 0 0 0 0 1 200
 Library 1 0 273 273 1 273
 Meeting Space 0 0 0 0 1 950 Shared with County Admin 

(Large Meeting Room) - Not 
included in tally

 Genealogy Research/ 
Newsletter Drafting 

0 0 0 0 1 100

 TOTAL 1,089 1,093

If addition added separate from County Admin building for elevator, stair:
Circulation factor
Circulation area SF
Building Area SF

 Historical Society 

0.35
383

1,476

Space Description Xstg #
Occ 
Per

Size 
(sf)

Xstg Total 
Size (sf)

# 
Needed

Total Size 
Needed (sf) Notes

Treasurer's Office 1 1 214 214 1 214 Service window not in use, 
used for visibility of DMV Select

DMV Select 1 3 492 492 1 492
Training Area 1 0 254 254 1 254 Possible future DMV expansion 

when not in use for training

Break Area 1 0 165 165 1 165
Work Area 1 0 182 182 1 182
File Storage 1 0 253 253 1 253
Server Room 1 0 156 156 1 156
TOTAL 1,716 1,716 Current space is sufficient for 

future needs

Space Description Xstg #
Occ 
Per

Size 
(sf)

Xstg Total 
Size (sf)

# 
Needed

Total Size 
Needed (sf) Notes

Commissioner Office 1 1 351 351 1 351
Income & Personal 
Property Office

2 1 171 342 2 342

Map Room 1 0 162 162 1 162
Work/Break Area 1 1 162 162 1 162
TOTAL 1,017 1,017 Current space is sufficient for 

future needs

Space Description Xstg #
Occ 
Per

Size 
(sf)

Xstg Total 
Size (sf)

# 
Needed

Total Size 
Needed (sf) Notes

Men's 2 2 65 130 1 130

Women's 2 1 48 96 1 96

Janitor 1 0 25 25 1 25
Corridor 1 0 587 587 1 587
TOTAL 838 838

TOTAL BUILDING 
AREA

3,571 3,571
Current space is sufficient for 
future needs

Must be made accessible; 
acceptable to provide 
restrooms to be shared 
between public and office staff

Treasurer's Office

Commissioner of the Revenue

Shared

Space Description Xstg # Occ Per Size (sf)
Xstg Total 

Size (sf)

Storage/Office/Utility 1 1 1,995 1,995
TOTAL 1,995

Public Works / Old Administration Building

Public Works operations to be relocated; table shown for existing 
building area only.  Basement area not included.

Treasurer/Commissioner 
Desired 3,571 SF

Old Admin Space 
Available
1,995 SF

Xstg #
Occ per 
Space

Size Ea. 
(sf)

Xstg 
Total 

Size (sf)
# 

Needed

Total 
Size 

needed 
(sf) Notes

Richard 1 1 200 200 1 200 Includes table for guests
Shilton 1 1 120 120 1 120
David 1 1 120 120 1 120
Future 0 1 120 0 1 120

1 0 240 240 1 240 10-12 ppl
0 0 80 0 1 80
1 0 120 120 1 120

0 1 150 0 1 150 Includes 2 seats for guests

0 1 150 0 1 150 Includes 2 seats for guests

Kelly 1 1 180 180 1 180 Includes storage shelving
Louise 1 1 180 180 1 180 Includes storage shelving
Titiana 1 1 180 180 1 180 Includes storage shelving
Future 0 1 180 0 1 180 Includes storage shelving

0 0 120 0 1 120 4-6 ppl, can be shared

0 2 100 0 1 100 1 receptionist/admin person

Beverly 1 1 120 120 1 120
Future Planner 0 1 120 0 1 120

Monica 1 1 120 120 1 120
Future BD 0 1 120 0 1 120

2 1 80 160 2 160
0 0 150 0 1 150 6-8 ppl, can be shared

0 240 0 1 240
0 60 0 1 60
0 60 0 1 60

Nick 0 1 180 0 1 150 Includes 2 seats for guests; 
needs small coat closet

Future 0 1 120 0 1 120
Future 0 1 120 0 1 120

0 0 120 0 1 120
0 0 120 0 1 120
0 0 60 0 1 60

0 1 120 0 1 120

0 1 120 0 1 120

1 1 150 150 1 150
0 50 950 0 1 950 In existing courtroom

0 0 50 0 1 50 Locate near side entry/large 
meeting room

1 0 150 150 1 150
0 0 100 0 1 100
1 0 180 180 1 180 w/ oven and dishwasher, 6 ppl

1 0 50 50 1 50
0 0 50 0 1 50
0 0 100 0 1 100 Units on roof or ground
0 1 60 0 1 60 May be shared w/ office
1 1 60 60 1 60
0 1 60 0 1 60 May be shared w/ office

1 1 60 60 1 60
0 1 75 0 1 75 May be shared w/ office

2390      6,415 Total programmed area

Circulation factor
Circulation area 836.5 2245.25 SF
Building Area 3226.5 SF 8660.25 SF

0.35                                            

Reception

Private Offices

EMS Suite
Private Offices

Plotter/Copier

Radio Work Area

Women's - Business
Bathing Room (Shower)

TOTAL

Supply Closet
Break Area

Private Office
IT

County Administration

County Administration

Children's Services Office

Parks and Rec Director

Finance

Space Description

Private Offices

Large Conference Room
Drug Testing
File Storage

Private Office

Private Office

Conference Room

Conference Room
Planning and Building 

Private Offices

Women's - Assembly

AV/IT Closet

Mechanical
Electrical Closet

Copy/Work Room

Hospitality Kitchen

Men's - Business

Large Meeting Room

Men's - Assembly

Reception

File Storage
Supply Closet

Shared

Public Works
Private Office

File Storage
Copy Area

Open Offices

Historical Society
 Desired 1,476 SF

Clerk of Court 
Desired 3,211 SF

County Offices
 Desired 8,660SF

Action Items - Page 5



Conceptual Overview
January, 2025 Sussex County Courthouse - Expansion & Renovation

SITE PLAN - PROPOSED

JUDICIAL CENTER

SHERIFF’S OFFICE COMMONWEALTH’S 
ATTORNEY

OFFICE BUILDING
(TREASURER AND COMM’R 

OF THE REVENUE)

OLD ADMIN 
BUILDING

CLERK OF COURT

HISTORIC 
COURTHOUSE

THORTON SQUARE

TH
O

RT
O

N
 S

Q
U

A
RE

THORTON SQUARE

C
O

U
RTH

O
U

SE RD
OLD FORTY RD

0’ 64’16’ 32’

Site Plan Legend
EXISTING BUILDING (NOT IN SCOPE)

EXISTING BUILDING

NEW CONSTRUCTION

Action Items - Page 6



Conceptual Overview
January, 2025 Sussex County Courthouse - Expansion & Renovation

Clerk of Court Building

TOTAL  ± 2,117 SF

Square Footage Explained

PROGRAMS NOT RELOCATED
 COMM’R OF THE REVENUE & TREASURER @ ± 3,571 SF (NOT SHOWN)
 CLERK OF COURT BUILDING @ ± 2,117 SF
 CLERK OF COURT ADDITIONAL SPACE @ 1,094 SF
 HISTORICAL SOCIETY @ 1,476 SF

AVAILABLE SPACE TO RELOCATE PROGRAM
 HISTORIC COURTHOUSE WITH ADDITION @ ± 6,660 SF
 OLD ADMINISTRATION BUILDING @ ± 1,995 SF
  TOTAL @ ± 8,655 SF

PROGRAMS TO BE RELOCATED TO COURTHOUSE AND OLD ADMIN BLDG
 COUNTY OFFICE @ 8,660 SF

NEW CONSTRUCTION BUILDING (NOT SHOWN)
 PUBLIC WORKS @  ± 2,140 SF  

RELOCATION OF PROGRAM DIAGRAM

Old Administration Building

TOTAL   ± 1,995 SF

Historic Courthouse with Addition

TOTAL  ± 9,230 SF

SCOPE OF WORK-HISTORIC COURTHOUSE:
• NEW CONSTRUCTION ADDITION TO EXPAND 

BUILDING TO MEET DESIRED SF 
• EXISTING BUILDING RENOVATED 
• HISTORIC COURTROOM WITH DOUBLE HIGH 

SPACE TO BE RESTORED 
• BUILDING TO BE REORGANIZED FOR SHARED 

COUNTY OFFICE AND HISTORICAL SOCIETY 
SPACES WITH CLERK OF COURT TO REMAIN IN 
CURRENT SPACE

SCOPE OF WORK- OLD ADMIN BUILDING:
• EXISTING BUILDING RENOVATED 
• BUILDING TO BE REORGANIZED FOR SHARED 

COUNTY OFFICE SPACES

SCOPE OF WORK- CLERK OF COURT BUILDING:
• UPDATED FINISHED 
• PROGRAM NOT RELOCATED

Site Plan Legend
EXISTING BUILDING (NOT IN SCOPE)

EXISTING BUILDING

NEW CONSTRUCTION

HISTORICAL 
SOCIETY 

HISTORIC 
COURTHOUSE

CLERK OF 
COURT BLDG

OLD 
ADMIN

CLERK OF 
COURT

COUNTY 
ADMIN

TOTAL

TOTAL

1,094 SF 2,117 SF 3,211SF

1,476 SF 1,476 SF

6,660 SF 1,995 SF 8,655 SF

9,230 SF 2,117 SF 1,995 SF 13,342 SF

U
SE

LOCATION
SUMMARY OF SPACE ALLOCATIONS

Action Items - Page 7



Conceptual Overview
January, 2025 Sussex County Courthouse - Expansion & Renovation

PROPOSED HISTORIC COURTHOUSE WITH NEW CONSTRUCTION

First Floor Second Floor

0’ 16’4’ 8’

ROOF BELOW

COUNTY OFFICE

RESTORE HISTORIC 
DOUBLE HIGH SPACE

CLERK OF COURT

COUNTY OFFICE

1,094 SF

4,0332,684 SF

Total Area Proposed: 5,197 SF
Area of New Construction: 1,514 SF

Total Area Proposed : 4,033 SF
Area of New Construction: 1,329 SF

Total Existing Building: 7,339 SF
Area of New Construction: 1,891 SF

Total Proposed Building: 9,230 SF

Total Clerk of Court: 1,094 SF
Total Historical Society: 1,476 SF

Total Shared County Office: 6,660 SF

Total : 9,230 SF

NEW  CONSTRUCTION

Organization of Space Legend

SHARED COUNTY OFFICE

CLERK OF COURT 

HISTORICAL SOCIETY

NEW  CONSTRUCTION

NEW  CONSTRUCTION

NEW  CONSTRUCTION

HISTORICAL SOCIETY

1,476 SF

Action Items - Page 8



Conceptual Overview
January, 2025 Sussex County Courthouse - Expansion & Renovation

Opinion of Probable Cost 

Courthouse Building and New Construction
 New Construction:  1,891 SF @ $878/SF 
 Renovation: 7,339 SF @ $977/SF 

Clerk of Court’s Building
 Updated Finishes: 2,117 SF @ $100/SF 

Old Admin Building
 Renovation:  1,995 SF @ $410/SF 

Treasurer/Revenue Building
 Renovation: 3,571 SF @ $303/SF  
 
Public Works Building (New Preengineered Building)
 New Construction: 2,140 SF @ $385/SF

Sitework

Construction Cost

 

$8,830,501

$211,700

$817,950

$1,082,013

$823,900

$771,285

$12,346,819

Professional Services (10-12% of construction cost)
1.   Design (75%)
2.   Bidding (5%)
3.   Contract Administration (20%)

Other Project Costs
1.   Owner’s Construction Contingency (8% of construction cost)
2.   Special Inspections
3.   Temporary Storage, Facilities, & Moving Costs
4.   FF&E Allowance
5.   Miscellaneous Expenses

Project Total

$1,234,682 - $1,481,618
$926,012- $1,111,214

$61,734 - $74,081
$246,936 - $296,324

$2,337,746
$987,746
$100,000
$350,000
$400,000
$500,000

$15,919,247 - $16,166,183

OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

Action Items - Page 9



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Action Items #6.02 
 
Subject:  School System Reimbursable Spending Cap Increase Request 
 

Board Meeting Date:   January 16 2025  
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:  The Sussex County School Division is requesting that the federal grants expenditure 
reimbursement threshold be increased from $80,000 to $200,000, to allow greater flexibility in 
meeting its operational needs, and a resolution is attached for your consideration.  Please note 
that the board temporarily increased this cap to $1.5M during the pandemic, but the cap reverted 
back to the current $80k limit in July 2024.  The School Superintendent, School Division Finance 
Director, County Administrator, Treasurer, and County Finance Director recently met to discuss 
this issue, and are in agreement to recommend the increase to $200,000.   
 
Dr. Hamlin will be available at the meeting to answer any questions. 
  
Recommendation: That the Board approve the attached resolution. 
 
Attachment:  Resolution #25-8 Approve an Amendment to the Federal Grants Expenditure 

Reimbursement Threshold Sussex School Board Budget 

 
============================================================================== 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:  TBD 

 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 

Baicy  ___ ___    Jones  ___ ___ 
 
Fly  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___ 
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
     

White    ____ ____                                               

Action Items - Page 10



Resolution #25-8 to 

Approve an Amendment to the Federal Grants Expenditure Reimbursement Threshold 

Sussex School Board Budget 

WHEREAS, the School Board is in receipt of approximately $1,600,000 in Federal Title Grants on 

an Annual basis. The School Division spends dollars approved in these grants, paid for by the 

County. Reimbursement requests are then submitted to the Virginia Department of Education for 

approval. This is in effect a loan to the Division while awaiting approval by the Virginia Department 

of Education. The Division was granted an increase in the Federal Programs Expenditure 

Reimbursement threshold policy from $80,000, which is unwritten and dates to pre-2010, to 

$1,500,000 during COVID due to the size of these Grants. This threshold reverted back to $80,000 

effective July 1, 2024. The School Division is requesting an increase in this threshold to $200,000 

due to the increase in the size of the Grants by the U.S. Department of Education. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that the Sussex County School Division threshold for 

federal grant expenditure reimbursement be increased from $80,000 to $200,000 as explained above. 

January 16, 2025 

_________________________________ 

Wayne Jones, Chairman 
Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Attest: 

_____________________________________ 

Shilton R. Butts, Clerk to the Board  

Approved as to form: 

Danielle Powell, County Attorney 

Action Items - Page 11



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Unfinished Business #8.01 

Subject:   Review and Revise the Short and Long-Term EMS Plan 

Board Meeting Date:  January 16 2025 

============================================================================== 

Summary:    Supervisor Fly has requested that the discussion of the short and long-term EMS plans be 
added as an agenda item.  The two-year EMS plan adopted by the board in Fall 2023 is attached for your 
information.  

Recommendation:  None 

Attachment:   Two-Year EMS Plan 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  TBD 

MOTION BY: 
SECONDED BY: 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ Jones     ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

S. White ___ ___ 

Unfinished Business - Page 1



Unfinished Business - Page 2



Unfinished Business - Page 3



Unfinished Business - Page 4



Unfinished Business - Page 5



Unfinished Business - Page 6



Unfinished Business - Page 7



Unfinished Business - Page 8



Unfinished Business - Page 9



Unfinished Business - Page 10



Unfinished Business - Page 11



Unfinished Business - Page 12



Unfinished Business - Page 13



Unfinished Business - Page 14



Unfinished Business - Page 15



Unfinished Business - Page 16



Unfinished Business - Page 17



Unfinished Business - Page 18



Unfinished Business - Page 19



Unfinished Business - Page 20



Unfinished Business - Page 21



Unfinished Business - Page 22



Unfinished Business - Page 23



Unfinished Business - Page 24



Unfinished Business - Page 25



Unfinished Business - Page 26



Unfinished Business - Page 27



Unfinished Business - Page 28



Unfinished Business - Page 29



Unfinished Business - Page 30



Unfinished Business - Page 31



Unfinished Business - Page 32



Unfinished Business - Page 33



Unfinished Business - Page 34



Unfinished Business - Page 35



Unfinished Business - Page 36



Unfinished Business - Page 37



Unfinished Business - Page 38



Unfinished Business - Page 39



Unfinished Business - Page 40



Unfinished Business - Page 41



Unfinished Business - Page 42



Unfinished Business - Page 43



Unfinished Business - Page 44



Unfinished Business - Page 45



Unfinished Business - Page 46



Unfinished Business - Page 47



Unfinished Business - Page 48



Unfinished Business - Page 49


	#1 January 16  2025 BOS Agenda
	#2.01 Minutes 2
	#2.01-1 12 19  2024 Regular BOS meeting minutes 2
	#2.01-2 12 12 2024 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
	#2.01-3 12 5-6 2024 Board Retreat  2

	#2.02 Warrants and Vouchers
	#2.03-2.04 Consent Agenda
	#2.03 Treasurer's Report
	#2.04-1 BD Cover
	#2.04-2 Bldg Dept December 2024 Report
	#2.04-3 BD December 2024

	#3 Recognition
	#3.01-1 Recognition of Carolyn Matthews
	#3.02-1 Robinson, Farm, Cox

	#4 Public Hearing (1)
	#4.01-1 Public Hearing (CUP- ISP Shooting Range) Board Action Form- 1.16.25 (002)
	#4.01-2 Public Hearing CUP #2024-05 BOS
	#4.01-3 Notice of BOS Public Hearing.1.16.2025
	#4.02-1 Public Hearing (CUP- ISP Shooting Range) Board Action Form- 1.16.25 (002)
	#4.02-2 Resolution Carryover Funds FY24
	#4.02-3 Resolution Amending Budget FY25
	#4.02-4 REVISED Sussex - Public Hearing Notice 1 16 2025. revised 3
	#4.02-5 REVISED Sussex - Public Hearing Notice 1 16 2025. revised
	c5bb5891-25f1-4e74-8a56-9692b80c8e7f.pdf
	#4.01-1 Public Hearing (CUP- ISP Shooting Range) Board Action Form- 1.16.25 (002)
	#4.01-2 Public Hearing CUP #2024-05 BOS
	#4.01-3 Notice of BOS Public Hearing.1.16.2025
	#4.02-1 Public Hearing (CUP- ISP Shooting Range) Board Action Form- 1.16.25 (002)
	#4.02-2 Resolution Carryover Funds FY24
	#4.02-3 Resolution Amending Budget FY25
	#4.02-4 REVISED Sussex - Public Hearing Notice 1 16 2025. revised 3
	#4.02-5 REVISED Sussex - Public Hearing Notice 1 16 2025. revised


	#5 Appointments
	#5.01-1 Action Form PC
	#5.01-2 Massenburg
	#5.01-3
	#5.02-1 Action Form CDAAA
	#5.03-1 Action FormBZA
	#5.03-2 bza

	#6 Action Items
	#6.01-1 Courthouse
	#6.01-2 2025 01 08 - Sussex County Courthouse-BOS Presentation
	#6.02-1 School Cap Increase
	#6.02-2 Resolution Amending Expenditure Threshold
	#6.01-1 Courthouse
	#6.01-2 2025 01 08 - Sussex County Courthouse-BOS Presentation
	#6.02-1 School Cap Increase
	#6.02-2 Resolution Amending Expenditure Threshold

	#8 Unfinished Business
	#8.01-1 EMS Plan
	#8.01-2 EMS TWO YEAR PLAN




